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UNITY

CHARTER SCHOOL

Teaching capable, confident kids

for a healthy planet

November 18,2013

Honorable President and Members of the Board of Trustees
Unity Charter School

One Evergreen Place

Suite A

Morristown, New Jersey 07960

Dear Board Members:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the Unity Charter School for the fiscal year June 30, 2013 is hereby
submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and completeness and fairness of the presentation,
including all disclosures, rests on the management of the Board of Trustees. To the best of our knowledge and
belief, the data presented in this report is accurate in all material respects and is reported in a manner designed to
present fairly the financial position and results of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund and aggregate remaining fund information as of June 30, 2013, and the respective changes in financial
position and cash flows, where applicable, for the year then ended, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an
understanding of the School's financial activities have been included.

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is presented in four sections: Introductory, Financial, Statistical and
Single Audit. The Introductory Section includes this transmittal letter, the School's organizational chart and a list of
principal officials. The Financial Section includes the general-purpose financial statements and schedules, as well
as the auditor's report. The School is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the provisions
of the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996, the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A 133, ‘Audits
of State and Local Governments, and Nonprofit Organizations,” and the State Treasury Circular Letter 04-04 OMB,
‘Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid Payments.” Information related to
this single audit, including the auditor's report on internal control structure and compliance with applicable laws and
regulations and findings and recommendations are included inthe Single Audit Section of this report.

REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES: Unity Charter School constitutes an independent reporting entity
within the criteria adopted by the GASB as established by GASB Statement No. 14 and GASB 34. All funds
and account groups of the entity are included in the report. The Unity Board of Trustees and its school
continue the School's reporting entity. The Unity Charter School was chartered by the New Jersey Department
of Education in January 1997 as the only charter school that had included a planning year prior to opening. The
school opened its doors to the first 60 students in grades K-7 in September 1998, in accordance with its
charter. It maintained that enrollment level throughout the first school year. The Unity Charter School now
operates a K-8 program, in which students thrive in a multi-age learning environment that stresses the importance of
social and environmental responsibility. While encouraging each child to grow academically, Unity integrates parents
and the community to participate in classroom support as well as the governance of the school.

ENROLLMENT OUTLOOK: Unity Charter School has completed its fifteenth year of operation as a kindergarten
through eighth grade public school of choice. Students are admitted to Unity Charter School using a lottery method, as
required by the State of New Jersey. Informational gatherings are held for interested parents in the fall and early
winter, prior to the lottery process. After lottery selection, families are notified, and waiting lists are maintained.
Enrollment information is maintained and reported as per Department of Education regulations. Unity ended the school
year with 183 students, graduating twelve students in June 2013.

MAJOR ACCOMPLISHMENTS: In accordance with the school’s mission, the Assembly, consisting of parents,
trustees, staff and students, met three times this past year, and discussing such topics as the school charter, fundraising,
development of a strategic plan, educational program and facilities issues. From these meetings came proposals and
activities for the school community and the Board of Trustees. Weekly school meetings, peer mediation and class
meetings continued the mission of collaborative teaching and governance.

Throughout the year, in accordance with the school’s mission, sustainability was taught through the investigation of the
effects of human endeavor on our ecosystem, using learning activities such as field trips, class curriculum and
individual research projects. The school lunch program continued its partially organic, whole food and vegetarian
program, harvesting from the garden for the school lunches. The curriculum integrated sustainability and diversity
themes with a robust curriculum that integrated the State Core Curriculum Standards. Students took the state required
ASK-3 through ASK-8 tests, scoring above the state average.

One Evergreen Place, Suite A e Morris Township, NJ 07960 973.292.1808 e Fax 973.267.9288

einfo@unitycharterschool.org
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INTERNAL ACCOUNTING CONTROLS: Management of the School is responsible for establishing and maintaining
an internal control structure designed to ensure that the assets of the School are protected from loss, theft or misuse.
The controls also ensure that accounting data is properly compiled with reasonable assurance of its accuracy. The
concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to
be derived and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management. The
primary control is that the Board President and one other Board member sign all general account checks, that all
Purchase Orders are reviewed and that the Board President signs all payroll checks. In addition, the Treasurer
verifies the payees onthe checks and confirms the check register.

As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, the School also is responsible for ensuring that an adequate
internal control structure is in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations related to those
programs. This internal control structure is also subject to periodic evaluation by the School management. As part of
the School's single audit, tests are made to determine the adequacy of the internal control structure, including
that portion related to federal and state financial assistance programs, as well as to determine that the School
has complied with applicable laws and regulations.

BUDETARY CONTROLS: In addition to internal accounting controls, the School maintains budgetary controls.
The objective of these budgetary controls isto ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual
appropriated budget approved by the Board of Trustees and the State of New Jersey. Annual appropriated
budgets are adopted for the general fund and the special revenue fund. Project-length budgets are approved for
the capital improvements accounted for in the capital project fund. The final budget amount, as amended for the
fiscal year, is reflected in the financial section.

As encumbrance accounting system is used to record outstanding purchase commitments on a line item
basis. Open encumbrances at year-end are either canceled or are included as re-appropriation of fund
balance atJune 30,2013.

ACCOUNTING  SYSTEM AND REPORTS: The School's accounting records reflect generally accepted
accounting principles, as promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).
The accounting system of the School is organized on the basis of funds and account groups. These funds and
account groups are explained in "Notes to the Financial Statements", Note 1.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION AT FISCAL YEAR END: Unity Charter School has continued its positive
financial position as compared to last year. Detailed information can be found in the Management Discussion
and Analysis. The School has been aggressive in collecting tuition owed from sending districts, and insuring that
the sending districts update the enrollment records in the DOE Charter School Enrollment System. However,
even with these efforts tuition payments from the sending districts are historically slow. Slow cash flow
sometimes impairs the school's ability to pay contractual obligations in a timely manner. Unity ended the 2012-
2013 year meeting all of its obligations, even though cash payment was delayed.

CASH MANAGEMENT: The investment policy of the School is guided in large part by state statute as detailed
in"Notes to the Financial Statements", Note II. The School has adopted a cash management plan which requires
it to deposit public funds in public depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the Governmental
Unit Deposit Protection Act ("GUDPA"). GUDPA was enacted in 1970 to protect Governmental Units
from a loss of funds on deposit with a failed banking institution on New Jersey. The law requires governmental
units to deposits public funds only in public depositions located in New Jersey, where the funds are secured
accordance the Act. This year we also invested a part of the funds in a CD that increased our rate of return while
allowing for access to most ofthe funds ifneeded.

RISK MANAGEMENT: The School carries various forms of insurance, including but not limited to general

liability, automobile liability and comprehensive/collision, hazard and theft insurance on property and contents.

INDEPENDENT AUDIT: The State statues require an annual audit by independent certified public accountants
or registered municipal accountants to be completed for all school districts. The accounting firm of VM
Associates Inc. was selected by the School. In addition to meeting the requirements set forth in state statues,
the audit also was designed to meet the requirements of the Single Audit Act amendments of 1996 and the
related OMB Circular A-133 and State Treasury Circular Letter 04-04 OMB. The auditor's report on the general
purpose financial statements and combining and individual fund statements and schedules is included in the
financial section of this report. The auditor's reports related to the single audit are included in the single audit section
of'this report.

We would like to express our appreciation to the members of the Unity Charter School for their concern in
providing fiscal accountability to the citizens and taxpayers of the school district and thereby contributing their full
support to the development and maintenance of our financial operation. The preparation of this report could not have
been accomplished without the efficient and dedicated services of our financial and accounting staff, and other
administrators in the school.

Sincerely,

Katine M. Slunt
Business Administrator/ Board Secretary
Unity Charter School

One Evergreen Place, Suite A e Morris Township, NJ 07960 973.292.1808 e Fax 973.267.9288
einfo@unitycharterschool.org
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VM ASSOCIATES, INC.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

}| The Honorable President and

Members of the Board of Trustees

el Unity Charter School

County of Morris, New Jersey

il Report on the Financial Statements

|| We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-

j| type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Unity Charter

El School as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements,

il which collectively comprise the Charter School’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

El Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
Bl accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
¥ includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
| and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
El fraud or error.

bl Auditor’s Responsibility
Il Our responsibility is to express opinions on these basic financial statements based on our audit. We

El conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
)| America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,

issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and in compliance with audit requirements as

| prescribed by the Office of School Finance, State of New Jersey. Those standards require that we plan
i and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial statements are
free of material misstatement.

[l An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
f| the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or

| error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
§| preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
| appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
f| of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
f| evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant

accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

| financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
j| to provide a reasonable basis for our audit opinions.



Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Unity Charter School as of June 30, 2013, and the
respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s
Discussion and Analysis and budgetary comparison information on Scheduies C-1 and C-2 be presented
to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required -
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United State
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Unity Charter School’s basic financial statements. The accompanying supplementary
information such as the combining and individual fund financial statements and Schedules of
Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance, as required by U.S. Office of
Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States. Local Governments. and Non-Profit
Organizations: and New Jersey OMB’s Circular 04-04, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal
Grants, State Grants and State Aid, and other information such as the introductory section and statistical
information are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic
financial statements.

The combining and individual fund financial statements and Schedules of Expenditures of Federal
Awards and State Financial Assistance are the responsibility of management and were derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
combining and individual fund financial statements and Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards
and State Financial Assistance are fairly stated, in all material aspects, in relation to the basic financial
statements as a whole. The introductory section and statistical information have not been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.



Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards and the Division of Finance,
Department of Education, State of New Jersey

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards and the Division of Finance, Department of
Education, State of New Jersey, we have also issued our report dated November 21, 2013 on our
consideration of the Unity Charter School’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on the internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards and the Division of Finance, Department of Education,
State of New Jersey in considering Unity Charter School’s internal control over financial reporting and
analysis.

A A
Vincent M. Montanino
Public School Accountant

License No. CS000495

A .
,'/;/ J X
’ A 1
Michael S. Zambito
Certified Public Acco! t

License No. 20CC00789500

November 21, 2013
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UNITY CHARTER SCHOOL
Management Discussion and Analysis
for the Year Ended June 30, 2013
(UNAUDITED)

The intent of the Management’s Discussion and Analysis (M.D. & A.) is to provide an overall explanation of the financial
activities and summarize the financial performance of the Unity Charter School for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. The
financial activity of the school is the numerical representation of the educational, social and recreational programs that occur
through out the school year. The Management’s Discussion and Analysis explains how these programs, and other financial
factors, effect the changes noted in the school’s annual financial statements.

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis is an element of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (C.A.F.R.), as
required under the Governmental Accounting Standards Board’s (G.A.S.B.) Statement No. 34. The Management Discussion
and Analysis is to be used in conjunction with the school’s Basic Financial Statements and Notes.

Summary of Performance:

The Unity Charter School provides a full range of educational services for Kindergarten through Grade 8". As a New Jersey
chartered school, Unity draws its students from over forty districts, through a lottery system. The educational, social and
recreational programs of the school stem from its overall mission statement:

The mission of Unity Charter School is to provide an environment for learning which fosters the development of
the responsible, the use of freedom, promotes a choice of interests in which to master fundamental concepts, and
which encourages ownership and personal power within the context of an ecologically responsible community.

From these objectives, the staff integrates innovation into the curriculum while providing dynamic experiences in the
classrooms that empower its students to learn and succeed in a global society. The result is that the school’s students continue
to score above state averages.

As a school of choice, Unity Charter has maintained its enrollment, with healthy waiting lists to fill interim openings. For
2012-2013, the school’s enrollment was 182, 119 in the Lower School (Grade K-4) and 61 in the Middle School (Grade 5-8).
Unity’s low teacher: student ratios provide more opportunities to address the students’ individual needs. Unity’s support of a
multi-age learning environment, that combining similar grades in one classroom, diversifies the educational experience for all
students. Unity’s implementation of the Positive Discipline Program teaches respect of self and of others, which in turn,
fosters a health learning environment. Unity’s focus on the importance of sustainability and environmental education is
infused into every aspect of the learning experience, from the school garden in science classes to the low-waste food program
in the cafeteria. The result is a strong academic program with the strong awareness of environmental and social
responsibility.

Financially, Unity completed another successful year. Revenues increased by 4% over those from the previous fiscal year.
Most of these revenues, 75%, related to taxes collected from the Unity’s 45 school districts, from which the 182 students
reside. In 2012-2013, Unity elected to enroll siblings of existing students, even though payment would not be received for the
children, because it was in the best interest of the families. This resulted in depressed tax collections from a number of school
districts, lowering total revenues for the 2012-2013 school year.

The remaining 25% of the revenues related to Operating Grants and Donations, and Program Fees. The Operating Grants are
from the State of New Jersey for the resident districts, through general state aid, additional aid for students with special needs
and security aid. The Operating Grants also include funds from the Federal Government for students with special needs. The
Donations are from organizations within the community, given for specific purposes; these funds are restricted in accordance
with the donor’s purpose. The After Care Program provided after-school, child care services to Unity students. These services
included a Homework Club, as well as general supervision after school.

Regular Operating Expenditures represent 76 % of the total expenditures and increased by 15% over those from the previous
fiscal year. Although strong cost containment efforts were implemented in the 2012-2013 school year, costs increased for
contractual salary and benefit obligations. In addition, Unity chose to expend funds from its available balances for facility
improvements, a Middle School consultant, a new math series and additional staff development opportunities
for its teaching staff. Unity also wrote-off asset improvements in 2012-2013; these building improvements were obsolete,
relating to a previous facility that was no longer in use. Because of these additional uses, the net assets position declined by
$66,176, an 18% decline from the previous fiscal year.
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UNITY CHARTER SCHOOL
Management Discussion and Analysis
for the Year Ended June 30, 2013
(UNAUDITED)

Overall Explanation of the Financial Statements:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report presents the school’s financial position as of June 30, 2013. The Basic
Financial Statements and_Notes contain detailed information on this financial activity. These statements are organized in
aggregate, or government-wide, in the Statement of Net Position and Statement of Change in Net Position and view the
school’s financial activities for the entire operating entity. Assets and liabilities are reported using the accrual basis of
accounting; revenues are recorded when earned and expenses when incurred, regardless of when cash is received or paid.

The_Statement of Net Position and Statement of Change in Net Position report the school’s change in net assets, which
quantifies whether the school’s financial position has improved or diminished during the fiscal year. This provides a longer-
term view of the school’s financial health. However, factors that effect this change can include non-financial events, such as
changes in facility condition, required educational programs and current laws in the state of New Jersey. In the Statement of
Net Position and Statement of Change in Net Position the district’s financial activity is divided into two kinds of activity,
Governmental and Business Type. Governmental activities contain most of the school’s basic programs and services for the
education of the student body. The Business Type activities provide services for a fee, similar to a for-profit entity.

Following the aggregated statements are more detailed statements by fund. The school uses many funds to account for a
multitude of financial transactions, including Governmental, Propriety and Fiduciary Funds.

The school’s Governmental Funds include the General Fund, Special Revenue Fund and Capital Projects Fund. These funds
are reported using a modified-accrual accounting basis, in which cash and all other financial assets are recorded when they
can readily be converted to cash, with no capital assets included. The governmental fund statements provide a short-term
view of the school’s general operations; they include the Balance Sheet and Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance. The relationship between the Governmental Funds and Governmental Activities (as reported in the
Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Change in Net Position) are reconciled in the financial statements.

The Proprietary Fund contains services that are provided to customers for a charge based on the services provided, such as
the food service and after-care programs. The Proprietary Statements include the Statement of Net Position, State of
Revenues, Expense and Changes in Net Position and the Statement of Cash Flows. These transactions are reported on an
accrual accounting basis, and are the same for the Proprietary Fund and the Business-Type Activities (as reported in the
Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Change in Net Position).

The Fiduciary Fund contains monies that the district does not own, but is holding in trust or as an agent for another agency,
such as federal and state tax agencies. The school is responsible to insure that the assets are disbursed for their intended
purpose. These transactions are reported on an accrual accounting basis, and presented in the State of Fiduciary Net Position
and the Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position. These funds are excluded from the Statement of Net Position and the
Statement of Change in Net Position, because the school cannot use the funds in its operations.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements provide additional information that is essential for the full understanding of the data
in the government-wide and fund financial statements.
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UNITY CHARTER SCHOOL
Management Discussion and Analysis
for the Year Ended June 30, 2013
(UNAUDITED)

Viewing the School as a Whole:

The table below summarizes the Statement of Net Position.

This table presents the Net Position of the whole entity, broken Net Position Business
down into its components, Governmental and Business-Type Type
Activities. The Governmental Activities represent most of the Net 1%

Position, as seen in the graph to the right.

The net position for Governmental Activities declined by 18%
from the previous year, resulting from the use of unrestricted
funds for facility improvements, a new mathematic textbook
series for grades K-4, the hiring of a Middle School consultant
and additional staff development opportunities for its teaching
staff. The decline in the restricted funds related to the decrease in
encumbered funds to zero at year-end. Equipment purchases
increased the investment in Capital Assets by $ 14,519. Govern'l

The net position for Business-Type Activities increased by 227%, 99%
due to improvements to the after care program during the 2012-
2013 school year.

Summary of Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Primary Government

Net Position 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

Current & Other Assets $ 397,984 | § 452,028 $ 29,945 $ 5,658 $ 427,929 | § 457,685
Capital Assets 103,262 88,743 0 0 103.262 88,743
Total Assets $ 501,246 | $ 540,771 § 29,945 $ 5,658 § 531,191 | $ 546,428

Other Liabilities $_156.678 | $_117.385 $_ 11,747 $ 100 $_168.425 | $_117.485
Total Liabilities $ 156,678 | $ 117,385 $ 11,747 $ 100 $ 168425 | $ 117,485

Invested in Capital Assets, $ 103,262 | $ 88,743 $ 0| $ 0 $ 103,262 | $§ 88,743
Net of Related Debt

Restricted 0 4,887 0 0 0 4,887
Unrestricted (deficit) 241,306 329,755 18,198 5.558 259,504 335,313

Total Net Position $ 344,568 | $ 423,385 $§ 18,198 $ 5,558 $ 362,766 | $ 428,943
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UNITY CHARTER SCHOOL
Management Discussion and Analysis
for the Year Ended June 30, 2013
(UNAUDITED)

The table below summarizes the Statement of Changes in Net

Position. Revenues Charges
for
This table presents the Change in Net Position for the whole entity, Services
broken down into its components, Revenues and Expenses. The 30 Other
0

revenues are shown in the graph to the right. Most of the funds 1%
earned relate to taxes (75%) and government aids (21%) collected
from the Unity’s 45 school districts, from which the 182 students
reside.

The revenues for Business-Type Activities increased by 41%, due to
improvements to the after care program during the 2012-2013 school
year. However, in total, these fees only represent 3% of the total
revenues earned.

Grants
21%

\Taxes

75%

Summary of Change in Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Primary Government

Net Position 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
REVENUES
Program Revenues:
Charges for Service $ 0$ 0| $ 77,519 | $ 54780 | $ 77,519 | $ 55,780
Operating Grants & Donations 595,322 556,706 0 0 595,322 556,706
General Revenues:
Property Taxes 2,070,346 1,950,276 0 0 2,070,346 1,950,276
Interest & Investment Earnings 13 8 0 0 13 8
Other General Revenues 11,256 77,551 0 0 11,256 74.551
Total Revenues | $2,676,937 | $2,581,541 | $ 77,519 | $ 54,780 | $2,754,456 | $2,636,321
Expenses
As mentioned above, this table presents the Change in Net Position
Operatns for the whole entity, broken down into its components, Revenues and
Admnstn 18% Expenses. The expenses are shown in the graph to the right. Most of
14% the funds expended relate to instruction (54%) and support (14%) of

\ Student
Support

14%

Instructn /

54%

the students, benefiting the 182 students directly. The costs related to
administration and overhead on the facility represent the remaining
32%. Included in the overhead costs are those related to the
Business-Type Activities of the food service and after care programs,
representing 11% of that total.

15



UNITY CHARTER SCHOOL
Management Discussion and Analysis
for the Year Ended June 30, 2013
(UNAUDITED)

Governmental Activities

Summary of Change in

Business-Type Activities Primary Government

Net Position 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
'EXPENSES | [ [ [ ]

Instruction:

Regular $ 1,480,970 | $ 1,326,641 0 0| $1,480,970 | $ 1,326,641
Support Services:

Student & Related Services 388,847 299,841 0 0 388,847 299,841

Administration 379,786 363,629 0 0 379,786 363,629

Operations & Maintenance 454,678 402,490 0 0 454,678 402,490

Pupil Transportation 7,818 0 0 0 7,818 0

Disposal of Capital Assets 43,355 0 0 0 43,355 0
Business-Type Activities:

Food Service 0 0 31,437 14,710 31,437 14,710

After Care Program 0 0 33.441 34,513 33.441 34,513

Total Expenses | $ 2,755,754 | §2,392,601 64,878 49223 | $2,820,632 | $2,441,823

Increase in Net Position (78,817) 188,940 12,641 5,557 (66,176) 194,498
Opening Balance- Net Position 423.385 234,445 5,557 0 428,943 234,445
Closing Balance-Net Position | $ 344,568 | § 423,385 18,198 5,557 $362,766 | $2,636,321
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UNITY CHARTER SCHOOL
Management Discussion and Analysis
for the Year Ended June 30, 2013
(UNAUDITED)

Viewing the Governmental and Business Type Activities:

Governmental Activities:

The Governmental Funds provide information on the short-term inflows, outflows and balances of spendable resources. As
seen in the below schedule, the Governmental Revenues increased by 3.70% over that of the previous year. Although
miscellaneous revenue declined due to fewer local grants, local taxes and the related state aid, as well as federal grants
increased, resulting in the overall increase for the 2012-2013 school year.

Variance Variance
Revenue Source 2012-2013 2011-2012 (in dollars) (in percent)
Local Sources:
Property Tax $ 2,070,346 $ 1,950,276 $ 120,070 6.16 %
Interest Earned 13 8 5 48.77 %
Miscellaneous 11,256 74.551 (63,295) (84.90 %)
Local Sources- Total S 2,081,615 S 2,024,835 S 56,780 2.80%
State Sources 562,566 529,022 33,544 6.34%
Federal Sources 32,756 27,684 5,072 18.32%
TOTAL $ 2,676,937 $ 2,581,541 $ 95,396 3.70 %

As seen in the below schedule, the Governmental Expenditures increased by 14.73% over that of the previous year.
Additional secretarial staff was added, increasing Student Services by 25.56%. Minor renovations and repairs, during the
summer, resulted in the hiring of a part-time handyman and additional supplies, which increased Operations costs by 13.04%.
The larger summer renovations increased Capital Outlay. Finally, the increase in Employee Benefits related to the increase in
medical and dental premiums, and additional pension contributions.

Expenditure Variance Variance
by Function 2012-2013 2011-2012 (in dollars) (in percent)
Current:
Regular Instruction $ 1,101,726 S 1,056,623 | $ 45,103 4.27 %
Student Support:
Student Services 272,156 216,759 55,397 25.56 %
Administration 292,269 301,318 (9,049) (3.00 %)
Operations 454,978 402,490 52,488 13.04%
Pupil Transportation 7,818 0 7,818 100.00 %
Employee Benefits 574,244 405,371 168,873 41.66%
Capital Outlay 67,082 31,981 35,101 109.76%
TOTAL $ 2,770,273 $ 2,414,542 $ 355,731 14.73 %
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UNITY CHARTER SCHOOL
Management Discussion and Analysis
for the Year Ended June 30, 2013
(UNAUDITED)

Business-Type Activities:

The Business-Type Activities relate to services rendered for a fee, similar to a for-profit entity. Such entities are evaluated
based on the return of that invested. As seen in the below schedule, the assets invested in the food service and after care
programs provide positive returns, indicating their strong fiscal viability.

Business-Type Entity Food Service After Care
Total Assets $ 5,880 $ 24,065
Net Position 377 17,821
Change in Net Position 377 5,558
Return on Ending Total Assets 6.42% 23.09%
Return on Ending Net Position 100.00% 31.19%

Viewing Capital Assets at Year-End:

The Capital Assets are building improvements and equipment, greater than $2,000. In 2012-2013, capital improvements of
$52,445 were made to the building, including the addition of a classroom. Computer and classroom furniture purchases were
made and classified as equipment, totaling $14,519. Additionally, in 2012-2013, a write-off of previous building
improvements was made, totaling $43,355; this write off eliminated building improvements on a facility that was no longer in
use.

Totals

Governmental Activities

Buildings $ 86,526 $ 144,983 $ 86,526 $ 144,983
Equipment 87,957 73.320 87,957 73.320
Fixed Assets $ 174,483 $ 218,303 174,483 $ 218,303
Accumulated Depreciation (71,221) (129,560) (71,221) (129,560)
Fixed Assets, net $ 103,262 $ 88,743 103,262 $ 88,743
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UNITY CHARTER SCHOOL
Management Discussion and Analysis
for the Year Ended June 30, 2013
(UNAUDITED)

Debt:

In accordance with New Jersey state statute, the school is not permitted to incur debt, through the issuance of bonds,
execution of capital leases or loans (except in the first year of business). As a result, normal disclosures for school districts,
related to debt, are excluded from the Basic Financial Statements and Notes.

Budgets:

The school’s budget is prepared about six months prior to the start of the fiscal year in accordance with New Jersey State
guidelines. This time delay results in revisions of the annual operating budget several times through out the fiscal year.

Revisions were made to adjust revenue projections and to prevent over-expenditures in specific appropriation accounts. In
accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:22-8.1, transfers to make these adjustments are approved by Board resolution at a public
meeting of the Board of Trustees.

No adjustments were made to the original budgeted amounts for Revenues. However, several revisions were made to the
original Expenditures, as noted below:

» An increase to the original budget was made for the prior year encumbrances for $4,887. The Board
appropriated, through Board resolution, unrestricted fund balance for capital improvements to the building,
totaling $50,000, and for the hiring of a Middle School consultant, totaling $8,000.

» The movement of funds occurred to increase Instructional Programs for additional classroom supplies; the funds
were available from Administration, due to savings in the telecommunication service contracts.

» The movement of funds occurred to increase Employee Benefits for additional pension contributions; the funds
were available from Operations, due to saving in insurance and Capital Outlay, due to lower pricing for the
construction projects.

In preparing the 2013-2014 budget, the Board of Trustees focused on meeting its educational priorities, while providing
accountability to the taxpaying communities and complying with the stringent restrictions set by the New Jersey Department
of Education.

Unity Charter School is in sound financial condition on June 30, 2013. The school is proud of its community support and
continues to commit itself to financial excellence. The school’s financial planning, budgeting, and internal controls structure
provide integrity to its financial system. The school plans to maintain this sound fiscal management and to meet it financial
responsibilities into the future.

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, investors, and creditors with a general overview of the
school’s finances. If you have questions about this report or need additional information, contact Katine M. Slunt, Business
Administration/ Board Secretary at Unity Charter School, One Evergreen Place Suite A, Morristown, New Jersey 07960.
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DISTRICT — WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables, Net
Interfunds Receivable
Prepaid Expenses
Restricted Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Capital Assets, Net

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Contracts Payable
Interfunds Payable
Deposits Payable
Deferred Revenue

Total Liabilities

NET POSITION

Net Investment in Capital Assets

Unrestricted/Unassigned

Total Net Position

BOARD OF EDUCATION
UNITY CHARTER SCHOOL
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2013

Governmental

Activities
$ 16,175.32

344,030.37
30,081.50

7,697.00

103,261.93
501,246.12

38,750.19
5,500.00

92,342.00

20,085.62
156,677.81

103,261.93

241,306.38

$344,568.31

Business-type

Exhibit A-1

Activities Total
$28,045.07 $ 44,220.39
1,622.36 345,552.73
30,081.50
377.31 377.31
7,697.00
- 103,261.93
2994474 531,190.86
165.61 38,915.80
5,500.00
11,5681.15 11,581.15
92,342.00
- 20,085.62
11,746.76 168,424.57
103,261.93
18,197.98 259 504.36
$18,197.98 $362,766.29

The accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

22



Juawaje)s siy) jo ped jesBajul ue ale sjusawale)s [eloueuld oiseg o} sajoN Buihueduiodose ay )

Buipug—uonisod 1oN

Buiuuibeg—uonisod 19N

uoilsod 18N ut ebuey)

sjessy |eydeq jo fesodsiq - way [enads
9LI02U| Shoaue||99s!IiAl

sBujuie juauysaau|

sasodind [eiauas) Joj palne ‘saxe ) Auedold

:sexe ]
:S9NUaAsY |BiaUd0)

JUBWIUISAOS) Atewild [210].
saNIAoy adA)-ssauisng [B10]
|00yag 18y
22IA18G POO+
‘solIMoY odAj-ssauisng

SANIAIOY [BJUSWIUIBAOY) [e)O ]
uonepodsuel] jidnd
soueusjule|\ pue suopeladQ jue|d
S80IAIDS SANBNSIUILIPY SSauUISNg pue [elaudg)
$801MI8G pajeley uolonIsu| pue juepnis

:s90)/ueg poddng
lejnbay

:uononJjsu|

:SBIIAIOY [BJUSWIUIBAOS)

swelboid/suonound

82'99.'29¢ $ 86°/61'81 % LE'89G'YPE  $
z.°Zv6'8cy 8¥'1GG°G yz'68e'cTy
(b¥'921'99) 0G6°0¥9'2) (€6'918'8L)
0.°652'8€0'¢ - 0.'652'8€0'2 sIaysuel] pue sws)| Ateuipioelxy ‘'sway| [e1oadg ‘sanuansy |elausg [ejo]
(¥1°GGE'EY) (F1'GGEEY)
81°962'L1 81'9gZ'L L
9971 99°C1L
00°9¥£'020'Z $ - $ oo'9ove'oL0'T $
(Erocyv012)$ 050v9ZlS (€99L0.LL'D)$ - $ 1£22€G66G $ 6881622 $  ¥eLL2LLL28
05°0¥9Z1 05°0v9'Z1 - - - 68'8LG'2. 6£8.8'79
99°L/0'v¥ 99°110'%V - - - 68'8LG'L. g€ lvp'ee
(91°Le¥'1€) (91°28¥%'LE) - 9L LE¥'LE
(£9°9/0°2112) - (€9°920'211°2) - 1£22€'G6S - G6'86£'21L'T
(t€818°2) (te's18"D) - 1£918°2
(L8°216'¥5Y) (18°226'¥5P) 18'L16'VSY
(¥0'88Y'062) (#0'88¥'062) GE'862'68 6€°98.'6.€
(zv'28.'692) (zv'28.'692) or'¥90'61L1 89'9¥8'88¢€
(66'600'v60'1)$ - $ (66'600'60'1)$ - ¢ 0g666'08¢ $ - ¢ 6v696'08Y'L$
Terol SOIATIOY SaNIAOY stiopnqruoy SuopnqEiuc)  SadIAISS Sasuadxy
adf)-ssauisng  |eJUSWILIBAO0D pue sjuels) pue sjuelny loj sabiey)
leydesn Bunelado

uonisod }9N ul sebueyn
pue anuaaay (asuadx3) JoN

2-v Hqiyxg

SINUBADY Em._mo._n_

£102Z ‘0¢ aunp pspug Jeaj ayj o

Sa1IAROY JO JusWR)E)S
7OOHOS HILHVHO ALINN
NOILLYONA3 40 auvos

(ep]
(o]



Section B

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
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ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents
interfunds Receivable

Receivables from Other Governmenis
Loan Receivable

Other

Interest Receivable on Invesiments
Inventory

Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts Payable

Contracts Payabie

interfunds Payable

Payable to Other Local Units
Deferred Revenue

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances:
Unassiged, Reported in:
General Fund
Total Fund Balances
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

BOARD OF EDUCATION
UNITY CHARTER SCHOOL
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2013

Exhibit B-1

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
net position (A-1) are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds. The cost
of the assets is $174,482.43 and the accumulated depreciation

is $71,220.50.

Net position of governmental activities

Special Total
General Revenue Governmental
Fund Fund Funds
$ 16,175.32 $ - $ 16,175.32
44751.88 44,751.88
300,762.37 32,756.00 333,518.37
8,512.00 - 8,512.00
- 2,000.00 2,000.00
7,697.00 - 7,697.00
$377,898.57 $ 34,756.00 $412,654.57
$ 38,750.19 $ - $ 38,750.19
5,500.00 5,500.00
14,670.38 14,670.38
92,342.00 92,342.00
- 20,085.62 20,085.62
136,592.19 34,756.00 171,348.19
241,306.38 241,306.38
241,306.38 - 241,306.38
$ 377,898.57 $ 34,756.00
103,261.93
$ 344 568.31

The accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, And Changes in Fund Balances

REVENUES

Local Sources:
Local Tax Levy
Interest Earned on Investments
Miscellaneous

Total - Local Sources

State Sources

Federal Sources

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Regular Instruction

BOARD OF EDUCATION
UNITY CHARTER SCHOOL

Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

Support Services and Undistributed Costs:
Student and Instruction Related Services
General and Business Administrative Services
Plant Operations and Maintenance

Pupil Transportation
Unallocated Benefits
Capital Outlay
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
over Expenditures

Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balance—July 1

Fund Balance—June 30

Exhibit B-2

Special Total
General Revenue Governmental
Fund Fund Funds
$ 2,070,346.00 - $ 2,070,346.00
12.66 12.66
1,274.06 9,982.12 11,256.18
2,071,632.72 9,982.12 2,081,614.84
561,445.31 1,121.00 562,566.31
- 32,756.00 32,756.00
2,633,078.03  43,859.12 2,676,937.15
1,092,622.45 9,103.12 1,101,725.57
237,400.44  34,756.00 272,156.44
292,268.57 292,268.57
454,977.87 454,977.87
7,818.31 7,818.31
574,244.33 574,244 .33
67,082.05 - 67,082.05
2726414.02 43,859.12 2,770,273.14
(93,335.99) - (93,335.99)
(93,335.99) - (93,335.99)
334,642.37 - 334,642.37
$ 241,306.38 $ - $ 241,306.38

The accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit B-3
BOARD OF EDUCATION
UNITY CHARTER SCHOOL
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

Total net change in fund balances - governmental funds (from B-2) $ (93,335.99)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of activities (A-2) are different because:

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. However,
in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives as depreciation expense.
This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the period.

Depreciation expense $ (9,207.85)
Capital outlays 67,082.05
57,874.20
In the statement of activities, only the gain on the disposal of capital assets is reported, whereas
in the governmental funds, the proceeds from a sale increase financial resources. Thus, the change in
net position will differ from the change in fund balance by the cost of the asset removed. (-) (43,355.14)
Change in net position of governmental activities $ (78,816.93)

The accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS

29



Exhibit B-4
BOARD OF EDUCATION
UNITY CHARTER SCHOOL
Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2013

Business-type Activities -
Enterprise Funds

Food After
Service School Totals
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents $5502.24 $22,542.83 $28,045.07
Accounts Receivable : 185.36 185.36
Other Receivables - 1,337.00 1,337.00
Prepaid Expense 377.31 - 377.31
Total Current Assets 5,879.55 24,065.19 29,944.74
Total Assets 5,879.55 24,065.19 29,944.74
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable - 165.61 165.61
Interfund Payable 5,502.24 6,078.91 11,581.15
Total Current Liabilities 5,502.24 6,244.52 11,746.76
NET POSITION
Unrestricted 377.31 17,820.67 18,197.98
Total Net Position $ 377.31 $17,820.67 $18,197.98

The accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit B-5
BOARD OF EDUCATION
UNITY CHARTER SCHOOL
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

Business-type Activities -
Enterprise Funds

Food After
Service School Totals
Operating Revenues:
Charges for Services:
Daily Sales - Non-reimbursable Programs $ - $ - $ -
Program Fees - 77,518.89 77,5618.89
Total Operating Revenues - 77,5618.89 77,518.89
Operating Expenses:
Cost of Sales 15,766.46 15,766.46
Salaries 9,378.47 30,878.80  40,257.27
Other Purchased Services 6,292.23 6,292.23
General Supplies - 2,562.43 2,562.43
Total Operating Expenses 31,437.16 33,441.23 64,878.39
Operating Income (Loss) (31,437.16) 44,077.66 12,640.50
Income (Loss) Before Contributions and Transfers (31,437.16) 44,077.66  12,640.50
Transfers In (Out) 31,814.47 (31,814.47) -
Change in Net Position 377.31 12,263.19  12,640.50
Total Net Position—Beginning - 5,557.48 5,5657.48
377.31 $17,820.67 $18,197.98

Total Net Position—Ending $

The accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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BOARD OF EDUCATION
UNITY CHARTER SCHOOL
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from Customers
Payments to Employees
Payments to Suppliers
Net Cash Provided By (Used for) Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Operating Subsidies and Transfers to Other Funds
Net Cash Provided By (Used for) Non-capital Financing Activities

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balances—Beginning of Year

Balances—End of Year

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided By (Used for) Operating Activities:
Operating Income (Loss)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided By (Used for) Operating Activities:
(Increase) Decrease in Other Current Assets
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payabie
Increase (Decrease) in Interfund Accounts Payable
Total Adjustments

Net Cash Provided By (Used for) Operating Activities

The accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit B-6

Business-type Activities -

Enterprise Funds

Food After
Service School Totals
$ - $ 75,996.53 $ 75,996.53
(9,378.47) (24,799.89) (34,178.36)
(17,033.76) (2,396.82) (19,430.58)
(26,412.23) 48,799.82 22,387.59
31,814.47 (31,814.47) -
31,814.47 (31,814.47) -
5,402.24 16,985.35 22,387.59
100.00 5,5657.48 5,657.48
$ 550224 $ 2254283 $ 28,045.07
$ (31,437.16) $ 44,07766 $ 12,640.50
(377.31) (1,522.36) (1,899.67)
(100.00) 165.61 65.61
5,502.24 6,078.91 11,581.15
5,024.93 4,722.16 9,747.09
$ (26,412.23) $ 48,799.82 $ 22387.59
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ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Interfund Accounts Receivable

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Interfund Accounts Payable
Reserve for Fund Raising
Payable to Student Groups
Payroll Deductions and Withholdings

Total Liabilities

NET POSITION _
Held in Trust for Unemployment
Claims and Other Purposes

BOARD OF EDUCATION
UNITY CHARTER SCHOOL
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2013

Unemployment

Exhibit B-7

Compensation  Agency
Trust Fund
$ 10.00 $25,819.98

- 1,822.00
$ 10.00 $27,641.98

$ - $ 650.31

20,322.35
2,628.70
2,813.67
- 1,226.95
- $27,641.98
$ 10.00

The accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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ADDITIONS
Contributions:
Plan Member
Other

Total Contributions

Investment Earnings:
Interest

Net Investment Earnings
Total Additions

DEDUCTIONS
Unemployment Claims

Total Deductions
Change in Net Position
Net Position—Beginning
Net Position—Ending

BOARD OF EDUCATION
UNITY CHARTER SCHOOL
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

Exhibit B-8

Unemployment
Compensation
Trust

$ 7,653.55
14,619.79

22,273.34

22,273.34

22,273.34
22,273.34
10.00

$ 10.00

The accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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BOARD OF EDUCATION
UNITY CHARTER SCHOOL

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Note I: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
A. Basis of Presentation

The financial statements of the Board of Education (Board) of the Unity Charter School (Charter School) have been
prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The Charter School is required to follow the
pronouncements of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued through November 30, 1989 (when
applicable) that do not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. Although the Charter School has the
option to apply FASB pronouncements issued after that date to its business-type activities and enterprise funds, the
Charter School has chosen not to do so. The more significant accounting policies established in GAAP and used by
the Charter School are discussed below.

B. Reporting Entity

The Unity Charter School is an instrumentality of the State of New Jersey, established to function as an educational
institution. The Board consists of elected officials and is responsible for the fiscal control of the Charter School. A
Charter School Lead Person is appointed by the Board and is responsible for the administrative control of the Charter
School.

The primary criterion for including activities within the Charter School reporting entity, as set forth in Section 2100 of
the GASB Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, is the degree of oversight
responsibility maintained by the Charter School. Oversight responsibility includes financial interdependency,
selection of governing authority, designation of management, ability to significantly influence operations and
accountability for fiscal matters. The combined financial statements include all funds of the Charter School over
which the Board exercises operating control. The operations of the Charter School include a elementary, school
located in Jersey City. There were no additional entities required to be included in the reporting entity under the
criteria as described above, in the current fiscal year. Furthermore, the Charter School is not includable in any other
reporting entity on the basis of such criteria.

C. Basic Financial Statements- Government-Wide Statements

The statement of net position and the statement of activities display information about the Charter School. These
statements include the financial activities of the Charter School, except for fiduciary activities. Eliminations have
been made to minimize the double counting of internal activities. These statements distinguish between the
governmental and business-type activities of the Charter School. Governmental activities generally are financed
through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange transactions.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each segment of
the business-type activities of the Charter School and for each function of the Charter School’s governmental
activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are
clearly identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues include (a) charges paid by the recipients of goods or
services offered by the programs and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or
capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including all
taxes, are presented as general revenues.
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(CONTINUED)

Note I: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

D. Basic Financial Statements- Fund Financial Statements

The financial transactions of the Charter School are reported in individual funds in the fund financial statements.
Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprises its assets, liabilities,
reserves, fund equity, revenues and expenditures/expenses. The various funds are reported by generic classification
within the financial statements.

The following fund types are used by the Charter School:

Governmental Fund Types

The focus of the governmental funds’ measurement (in the fund statements) is upon determination of financial
position and changes in financial position (sources, uses, and balances of financial resources) rather than upon net
income. The following is a description of the governmental funds of the Charter School:

General Fund — The general fund is the general operating fund of the Charter School. It is used to account for
all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund: Included are certain
expenditures for vehicles and movable instructional or noninstructional equipment which are classified in the
Capital Outlay subfund.

As required by the New Jersey State Department of Education, the Charter School includes budgeted Capital
Outlay in this fund. Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States as they pertain to
governmental entities state that General Fund resources may be used to directly finance capital outlays for
long-lived improvements as long as the resources in such cases are derived exclusively from unrestricted
revenues.

Resources for budgeted capital outlay purposes are normally derived from State of New Jersey Aid, district
taxes and appropriated fund balance. Expenditures are those that result in the acquisition of or additions to
fixed assets for land, existing buildings, improvements of grounds, construction of buildings, additions to or
remodeling of buildings and the purchase of built-in equipment. These resources can be transferred from and
to Current Expense by board resolution.

Special Revenue Fund — The Special Fund is used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue from State
and Federal Government, (other than major capital projects, Debt Service or the Enterprise Funds) and local
appropriations that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes.

Proprietary Fund Type

The focus of Proprietary Fund measurement is upon determination of net income, changes in net assets,
financial position and cash flows. The generally accepted accounted principles applicable are those similar to
businesses in the private sector. The following is a description of the Proprietary Funds of the District:

38



BOARD OF EDUCATION
UNITY CHARTER SCHOOL

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013
CONTINUED

Note I: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
D. Basic Financial Statements- Fund Financial Statements (Continued)
Proprie Fund Type (Continued

Enterprise Funds — The Enterprise Funds are utilized to account for operations that are financed and operated
in a manner similar to private business enterprises — where the intent of the District is that the costs (ie.
expenses including depreciation and indirect costs) of providing goods or services to the students on a
continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or, where the District has decided
that the periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for
capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability or other purposes.

The District’s Enterprise Fund are comprised of the Food Service Fund and After School Program.

Depreciation of all exhaustive fixed assets used by proprietary funds is charged as an expense against their
operations. Accumulated depreciation is reported on proprietary fund balance sheets. Depreciation has been
provided over the estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives are as

follows:

Food Service Fund:

Equipment 12 Years

Light Trucks and Vehicle 4 Years

Heavy Trucks and Vehicle 6 Years
Fiduciary Fund Types

Fiduciary Funds are used to report assets held in a trustee or agency capacity for others and therefore are not
available to support Charter School programs. The reporting focus is on net position and changes in net
position and are reported using accounting principles similar to prpprietary funds.

The Charter School’s fiduciary funds are presented in the fiduciary fund financial statements by type
(unemployment, student activity, fund raising and agency). Since by definition these assets are being held for
the benefit of a third party (other local governments, private parties, pension participants, etc.) and cannot be
used to address activities or obligations of the government, these funds are not incorporated into the
government-wide statements.

E. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The government-wide, proprietary and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the economic
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and
expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place.
Nonexchange transactions, in which the Charter School gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or
giving) equal value in exchange, include state and federal aid, property taxes, grants entitlements and donations.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued

E. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting (Continued)

Government funds are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual
basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when measurable and available. The Charter
School considers all revenues reported in the governmental funds to be available if the revenues are collected
within sixty days after year after year-end. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred,
except for principal and interest on general long-term debt, claims and judgments and compensated absences
which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured. General capital asset acquisitions are
reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital
leases are reported as other financing sources.

F. Budgets/Budgetary Control

Annual appropriated budgets are prepared in the spring of each year for the general and special revenue funds.
The budgets are submitted to the county office. Budgets are prepared using the modified accrual basis of
accounting. The legal level of budgetary control is established at line item accounts within each fund. Line item
accounts are defined as the lowest (most specific) level of detail as established pursuant to the minimum chart of
accounts referenced in N.J.A.C. 6:20-2A.2(m)1.

All budget amendments must be approved by Board resolution. Appropriation of prior year encumbrances in the
amount of $4,887.00 and appropriation of fund balance in the amount of $58,000.00 was made during the year
ended June 30, 2013. The significant budget transfers and amendments approved in the school year are presented
on Exhibit C-1. For the year ended June 30, 2013, there were no expenditures that exceeded appropriations in the
General Fund. ~'

Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is employed as a management control device during the
year. For governmental funds there are no substantial differences between the budgetary basis of accounting and
generally accepted accounting principles with the exception of legally mandated revenue recognition of the last
state aid payment for budgetary purposes only and the the special revenue fund as noted below. Encumbrance
accounting is also employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the governmental fund types.
Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

The accounting records of the special revenue fund are maintained on the grant accounting budgetary basis. The
grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that the grant accounting budgetary basis recognizes
encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis does not.
Sufficient supplemental records are maintained to allow for the presentation of GAAP basis financial reports.

Open encumbrances in the special revenue fund for which the Charter School has received advances are reflected
in the balance sheet as deferred revenues at fiscal year end.

The reconciliation of the general and special revenue funds from the budgetary basis of accounting to the GAAP
basis of accounting is presented on Exhibit C-3.
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Note I: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

G. Assets, Liabilities. Net Position and Fund Equity

1. Deposits and Investments

Deposits are cash and cash equivalents including petty cash, change funds, cash in banks and all highly
liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less at the time of purchase and are stated at cost plus
accrued interest. Other than Certificates of Deposit, deposits with maturities of greater than three months
are considered to be investments. U.S. Treasury and Agency Obligations and Certificates of Deposit with
maturities of one year or less when purchased are stated at cost. All other investments are stated at fair
value.

New Jersey Charter Schools are limited as to the types of investments and types of financial institutions they
may invest in. New Jersey statute 18A:20-37 provides a list of permissible investments that may be
purchased by New Jersey school Charter Schools.

2. Short — term Interfund Receivables/Payables

Short — term interfund receivables/payables represents amounts that are owed, other than charges for goods
or services rendered to/from a particular fund in the Charter School and that are due within one year.

3. Capital Assets

Capital assets purchased or acquired with an original cost of $2,000 or more are reported at historical cost
or estimated historical cost. Contributed assets are reported at fair market value as of the date received.
Additions, improvements and other capital outlays that significantly extend the useful life of an asset are
capitalized. Other costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred. Depreciation on
the following assets is provided on the straight — line basis over the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings : 20-50 years
Machinery and Equipment 5-10 years
Land Improvements 10-20 years
Other Infrastructure 10-50 years

Land and Construction in Progress are not depreciated.

GASBS No. 34 requires the Charter School to report and depreciate new infrastructure assets effective with
the beginning of the current year. Neither their historical cost nor related depreciation has historically been
reported in the financial statements. The retroactive reporting of infrastructure is subject to an extended
implementation period and was first effective for fiscal years ending in 2006.
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Note I:Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
G. Assets, Liabilities and Fund Equity (Continued)

4. Compensated Absences

Compensated absences are those absences for which employees will be paid, such as vacation, sick leave,
and sabbatical leave. A liability for compensated absences that are attributable to services already rendered,
and that are not contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the Charter School and its
employees, is accrued as the employees earn the rights to the benefits. Compensated absences that relate to
future services, or that are contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the Charter School
and its employees, are accounted for in the period in which such services are rendered or in which such
events take place.

In governmental and similar trust funds, compensated absences that are expected to be liquidated with
expendable available financial resources are reported as an expenditure and fund liability in the fund that
will pay for the compensated absences. The noncurrent portion (the amount estimated to be used in
subsequent fiscal years) for governmental funds is maintained separately and represents a reconciling item
between the fund and government — wide presentations. (See Note IX)

5. Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue in the special revenue fund represents cash which has been received but not yet earned.
See Note I (F) regarding the special revenue fund.

6. Fund Equity

Reserves represent those portions of fund equity not appropriable for expenditure or legally segregated for a
specific future use. Designated fund balances represent plans for future use of financial resources.

7. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reports, amounts and
disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates

H. Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2010, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 62,
“Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989
FASB and AICPA Pronouncements.” The statement which is effective for periods beginning after
December 15, 2011, amends and supersedes several previously issued GASB statements to incorporate
guidance that had been included in AICPA and FASB guidance. The Charter School has adopted this
statement for the year ended June 30, 2013.
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Note I: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
H Recent Accounting Pronouncements (Continued)

In June 2011, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 63, “Financial
Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and net Position.” This
statement, which is effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2011, amends several previously
issued GASB statements to standardize reporting of deferred inflows and outflows of financial resources.
This pronouncement is not applicable to the Charter School.

In March 2012, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 65, “Items
Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities.” This statement which is effective for periods beginning
After December 15, 2012, establishes accounting and financial reporting standards that reclassify, as
deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reported
as assets and liabilities and recognizes, as outflows of resources or inflows of resources, certain items that
were previously reported as assets and liabilities. The Charter School has adopted this statement for the
year ended June 30, 2013.

In March 2012, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 66,
“Technical Corrections-2012, an Amendment of GASB Statements 10 & 62.” This statement which is
effective for periods beginning After December 15, 2012, purpose is to improves accounting and financial
reporting for a governmental financial reporting entity by resolving conflicting guidance that resulted from
the issuance of two pronouncements, Statements No. 54, “Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental
Fund Type Definitions and No. 62, “Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance
Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements. The Charter School is in the
process of reviewing its obligations under GASB 66, and its potential impact on the financial statements

In June 2012, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 67, “Financial
Reporting for Pension Plans, an Amendment of GASB 25.” This statement will be effective for periods
beginning with the year ending June 15, 2013. The objective of this Statement is to improve financial
reporting by state and local governmental pension plans. This Statement replaces the requirements of
Statements No. 25, “Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit Pension Plans and Note Disclosures for
Defined Contribution Plans, and No. 50, “Pension Disclosures.” The Charter School is in the process of
reviewing its obligations under GASB 67, and its potential impact on the financial statements.

In June 2012, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 68,
“Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions.” This statement will be effective for periods beginning
with the year ending June 15, 2014. This Statement replaces the requirements of Statement No. 27,
“Accounting for Pensions by State and Local Governmental Employers”, as well as the requirements of
Statement No. 50, “Pension Disclosures.” This Statement and Statement No. 67 establish a definition of a
pension plan that reflects the primary activities associated with the pension arrangement-determining
pensions, accumulating and managing assets dedicated for pensions, and paying benefits to plan members
as they come due. The Charter School is in the process of reviewing its obligations under GASB 67, and
its potential impact on the financial statements.
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Note III: Detailed Disclosure Regarding Assets and Revenues
A. Deposits and Investments

Deposits

New Jersey statutes permit the deposit of public funds in institutions located in New Jersey which are
insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC), the Savings Association Insurance Fund, or
by any other agencies of the United States that insure deposits or the State of New Jersey Cash
Management Fund.

N.J.S.A. 17:9-41 et. Seq. establishes the requirements for the security of deposits of governmental units.
The statute requires that no governmental unit shall deposit public funds in a public depository unless such
funds are secured in accordance with the Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act. Public depositories
include Savings and Loan institutions, banks (both state and national banks) and savings banks the deposits
of which are federally insured. All public depositories must pledge collateral, having a market value at
least equal to five percent of the average daily balance of collected public funds, to secure the deposits of
Governmental Units. If a public depository fails, the collateral it has pledged, plus the collateral of all
other public depositories, is available to pay the full amount of their deposits to the Governmental Units.

At June 30, 2013 the Unity Charter School’s cash and cash equivalent’s amounted to $167,814.62 all of
which was covered by federal depository insurance (F.D.L.C.).

At June 30, 2013 the Unity Charter School did not participate in the State of New Jersey Cash
Management Fund.

GASB Statement No. 40, Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosures, requires the disclosure of bank
deposits that are subject to custodial credit risk. The custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the
event of the failure of a depository financial institution, the Unity Charter School will not be able to
recover deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that may be in the possession of an
outside party.

As of June 30, 2013 none of the Unity Charter School’s cash and cash equivalents of 167,814.62 was
exposed to custodial credit risk.

THIS SPACE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK
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A. Deposits and Investments (Continned)

Investments

New Jersey statutes (N.J.S.A. 40A: 5-15.1) permit the Unity Charter School to purchase the following
types of securities:

a. When authorized by resolution adopted by a majority vote of all its members the board of education
of any Charter School may use moneys which may be in hand for the purchase of the following types of
securities which, if suitable for registry, may be registered in the name of the Charter School;

(1) Bonds or other obligations of the United States of America or obligations guaranteed by the
United States of America;

(2) Government money market mutual funds;

(3) Any obligation that a federal agency or a federal instrumentality has issued in accordance with
an act of Congress, which security has a maturity date not greater than 397 days from the date of purchase,
provided that such obligation bears a fixed rate of interest not dependent on any index or other external
factor;

(4) Bonds or other obligations of the school Charter School or bonds or other obligations of local
unit or units within which the Charter School is located;

(5) Bonds or other obligations, having a maturity date not more than 397 days from the date of
purchase, approved by the Division of Investment of the Department of the Treasury for investment by
Charter School;

(6) Local government investment pools:

(7) Deposits with the State of New Jersey Cash Management Fund established pursuant to section
1 of P.L. 1977, c.281 (C.52:18A-90.4) or

(8) Agreements for the repurchase of fully collateralized securities, if:

(a) the underlying securities are permitted investments pursuant to paragraphs (1) and (3) of
this subsection a;

(b) the custody of collateral is transferred to a third party;

(c) the maturity of the agreement is not more than 30 days;

(d) the underlying securities are purchased through a public depository as defined in section 1
of P.L. 1970, ¢.236 (C.17:9-41) and for which a master repurchase agreement providing for the custody
and security of collateral is executed.

The Unity Charter School had no investments as described in Note I:G.1 at June 30, 2013.

B. Interfund Receivables and Payables

As of June 30, 2013, there were interfund receivables in the general fund in the amount of $44,751.88 due

from the following funds:
Special Revenue Fund ~ $14,670.38
Enterprise Fund $ 9,759.15
Trust and Agency Fund  $20.322.35
$44.751.88

45



BOARD OF EDUCATION
UNITY CHARTER SCHOOL

NOTES TO BASIS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013
CONTINUED

Note IIT: Detailed Disclosure Regarding Assets and Revenues (Continued)

C. Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2013 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Retirement Balance
Governmental Activities:
Buildings and Improvements $144,983.02 $52,445.05 $(110,902.32) $ 86,525.75
Machinery and Equipment 73,319.68  14,637.00 - 87,956.68
Totals at Historical Cost 218,302.70  67,082.05 (110,902.32) 174,482.43
Less Accumulated Depreciation For:
Land Improvements -
Buildings and Improvements (69,716.22)  (4,326.28) 67,547.18 (6,495.32)
Machinery and Equipment (59,843.61)  (4,881.57) - (64,725.18)
Total Accumulated Depreciation (129,559.83) _ (9,207.85) (1) 67,547.18  (71,220.50)
Net Capital Assets Being Depreciated 88,742.87  57,874.20 (43,355.14) 103,261.93

Governmental Activities Capital Assets, Net $ 88,742.87 $57,874.20

$ (43,355.14) $103,261.93

(1) Depreciation expense was charged to governmental functions as follows:

Instruction $ (5,985.10)
Student and Instruction Related Services (1,841.57)
General and Business Administrative Services (1,381.18)

$ (9,207.85)
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Note V: Pension Plans

Description of Systems

Substantially all of the Board’s employees participate in one of the following contributory defined benefit public
employee retirement systems which have been established by State statute: the Teachers’ Pension and Annuity
Fund (TPAF) or the Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS). These systems are sponsored and
administered by the New Jersey Division of Pensions and Benefits. The Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund
retirement system is considered a cost sharing plan with special funding situations as under current statute, all
employer contributions are made by the State of New Jersey on behalf of the Board and the system’s other related
non-contributing employers. The PERS is considered a cost sharing multiple-employer plan.

The Public Employees® Retirement System (PERS) was established in January 1955, under the provisions of
N.I.S.A. 43:15A to provide coverage including post-retirement health care to substantially all full time employees
of the State or any county, municipality, school district or public agency provided the employee is not a member of
another State-administered retirement system. Membership is mandatory for such employees and vesting occurs
after 8 to 10 years of service for pension benefits and 25 years for post — retirement health care coverage.

The Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) was established in January 1955, under the provisions of
N.J.S.A. 18:66 to provide coverage including post-retirement health care to substantially all full time public school
employees in the State. Membership is mandatory for such employees and vesting occurs after 10 years of service
for pension benefits and 25 years for post — retirement health care coverage.

According to the State of New Jersey Management Administrative Code, all obligations of both Systems will be
assumed by the State of New Jersey should the Systems terminate. The State of New Jersey, Department of the
Treasury, Division of Pensions and Benefits issues a publicly available financial report that includes the financial
statements and required supplementary information of each of the Public Employees Retirement System and the
Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund. These reports maybe obtained by writing to the State of New Jersey,
Department of the Treasury, Division of Pensions and Benefits, PO Box 295, Trenton, New Jersey 08625-0295.

Retirement Benefits
For PERS and TPAF employees, the benefits will be 1/55 of the average of the three highest years compensation

for each year of service. However, for PERS and TPAF who are veterans of the U.S. armed forces, the benefits
will be 1/55 of final compensation for each year of service.
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Pension Plans (Continued)

Significant Legislation

Chapter 89, P.L. 2008, became effective November 1, 2008, increased TPAF and PERS retirement age. If a
person becomes a member on or after November 1, 2008 that person must be at least 62 years of age in order to
retire without a reduction in their retirement allowance.

Chapter 89, P.L. 2008, effective November 1, 2008, increased the PERS retirement age. If a person becomes a
member on or after November 1, 2008 that person must be at least 62 years of age in order to retire without a
reduction in their retirement allowance.

Chapter 78, P.L. 2011, effective June 28, 2011 implements changes to the PERS. PERS employee pension
contribution rates will increase from 5.5% to 6.5% of salary

The second phase of the contribution rate increase from 6.5% to 7.5% is to be phased in equally over a 7 year
period beginning July 2012. The contribution rate will increase by 0.14% each year with the first payroll of July
until the 7.5% contribution rate is reached in July 2018.

The increase in the PERS employee contribution rate will also increase the minimum repayment amount for
pension loans or the cost for a purchase of service credit if certified after the employee’s increased contribution
becomes effective.

Under a provision of Chapter 78, P.L. 2011, Cost of Living Adjustments (COLA) are suspended for all current and
future retirees of all retirement systems. There is no reduction to any COLA increases that were already added to
retiree benefits prior to the effective date of the law.

Contribution Requirements

The contribution policy is set by New Jersey State Statutes and, in most retirement systems, contributions are
required by active members and contributing employers. Plan member and employer contributions may be
amended by State of New Jersey legislation. The pension funds provide for employee contribution rates to
increase from 6.50 percent of employees’ annual compensation to 7.5%, phased in starting in July 2012.
Employers are required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate in all Funds. The actuarially determined
employer contribution includes funding for cost-of-living adjustments and noncontributory death benefits in the
TPAF and PERS.

During the year ended June 30, 2012, for TPAF, annual pension cost equals annual required contribution. For

PERS, the annual pension cost differs from the annual required contribution due to the enactment of Chapter 114,
P.L. 1997.
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Pension Plans (Continued)

Con_tributions — Actual

The Unity Charter School’s total payroll for the year ended June 30, 2013 was $1,406,172.67 and covered payroll
was $1,017,629.00 for TPAF and $109,868.00 for PERS. Contributions to the TPAF and the PERS for the last
three years ended June 30 made by the employees, the Board, and the State of New Jersey on behalf of the Board
were as follows:

Percent of Percent of
Covered Covered
TPAF Payroll PERS Payroll

Employees 6/30/11  $45,187.40 5.61% $6,633.56 5.73%
6/30/12  $65,500.79 6.92% $7,759.60 6.75%
6/30/13  $89,577.61 8.80% $9,054.90 8.24%

Board of 6/30/11 $11,433.00 9.87%
Education 6/30/12 $11,775.00 10.25%
6/30/13 $13,977.00 12.72%

State of New  6/30/11 § 44,311.00 5.50%
Jersey 6/30/12 $§ 70,134.00 7.41%
6/30/13  $117,102.00 11.51%

In accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:66-66 the State of New Jersey reimbursed the Board $81,495.31 during the year
ended June 30, 2013 for the employer’s share of social security contributions for TPAF members as calculated on
their base salaries. This amount and the State of New Jersey’s Contribution to the TPAF have been included in the
basic financial statements and the budgetary comparison schedule — General Fund as a revenue and expenditure in
accordance with GASB 24.

Post-Retirement Medical Benefits

Chapter 384 of Public Laws 1987 and Chapter 6 of Public Laws 1990 required TPAF and PERS, respectively, to
fund post-retirement medical benefits for those State employees who retire after accumulating 25 years of credited
service or on a disability retirement. P.L. 2007, ¢ 103 amended the law to eliminate the funding of post-retirement
medical benefits through the TPAF and PERS. It created separate funds outside of the pension plans for the
funding and payment of post-retirement medical benefits for retired State employees and retired educational
employees. As of June 30, 2012 there were 97,661 retirees eligible for post-retirement medical benefits. The cost
of these benefits is finded through contributions by the State in accordance with Chapter 62, P.L. 1994. Funding
of post-retirement medical premiums changed from a prefunding basis to a pay-as-you-go basis beginning in fiscal
year 1994.

The State is also responsible for the cost attributable to P.L. 1992 c¢.126 which provides free health benefits to
members of PERS and the Alternate Benefit Program who retired from a board of education or county college with
25 years of service. The State paid $146.6 million toward Chapter 126 benefits for 16,618eligible retired
members in Fiscal Year 2012.
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BOARD OF EDUCATION
UNITY CHARTER SCHOOL

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013
CONTINUED

Note VII: Risk Management

The Unity Charter School is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.

Property and Liability Insurance — The Unity Charter School maintains commercial insurance coverage for
property, liability, student accident and surety bonds. A complete schedule of insurance coverage can be found in
the Statistical Section of the CAFR.

New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance — The Unity Charter School has elected to fund its New
Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance under the “Benefit Reimbursement Method”. Under this plan, the
Unity Charter School is required to reimburse the New Jersey Unemployment Trust Fund for benefits paid to its
former employees and charged to its account with the State. The Unity Charter School is billed quarterly for
amounts due to the State.

Charter
Fiscal School Employee Amount Ending
Year Contributions Contributions Reimbursed Balance
2012-2013 $14,619.79 $ 7,653.55 $22,273.34 $ 10.00
2011-2012 $13,901.78 $13,922.26 $30,505.78 $ 10.00
2010-2011 $ 5,353.23 $ 2,157.66 $ 5,353.23 $2,691.74

Note VIII Subsequent Events

The Unity Charter School’s management has informed us that there are no significant events that need to be
disclosed after the balance sheet date through the date of audit.
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Section C

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES
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REVENUES:
Local Sources:
Local Tax Levy
Interest Earned on Investments
Miscellaneous

Total - Local Sources

State Sources:
Local Tax Levy - State Aid Share
Special Education Categorical Aid
Security Aid
Non-Public Aid
TPAF Pension (On-Behalf - Non-Budgeted)
TPAF PRM (On-Behalf - Non-Budgeted)
TPAF Social Security (Reimbursed - Non-Budgeted)

Total State Sources
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current Expense:
Regular Programs - Instruction
Grades 6-8 - Salaries of Teachers
Regular Programs - Undistributed Instruction
Other Salaries for instruction
Purchased Professional-Educational Services
Purchased Technical Services
General Supplies
Textbooks
Other Objects
TOTAL REGULAR PROGRAMS - INSTRUCTION

Total Instruction

Undist. Expend. - Other Supp. Serv. Students-Reg.
Salaries of Other Professional Staff
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants
Purchased Professional - Educational Services

Total Undist. Expend. - Other Supp. Serv. Students-Reg.

Undist. Expend. - Supp. Serv. - General Admin.
Salaries
Other Purchased Professional Services
Purchased Technical Services
Communications/Telephone
Other Purchased Services (400-500 series)
Supplies and Materials
Miscellaneous Expenditures
Total Undist. Expend. - Supp. Serv. - General Admin.
Undist. Expend. - Oth. Oper. & Maint. of Plant
Rentals Other Than Lease Purchase Agreements
Other Purchased Property Services
Insurance
General Supplies
Energy (Energy and Electricity)
Total Undist. Expend. - Other Oper. & Maint. Of Plant
Undist. Expend. - Student Transportation Serv.

BOARD OF EDUCATION
UNITY CHARTER SCHOOL
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
General Fund
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Contracted Services (Other than Between Home and School) 000-270-512

Contracted Services - Aid in Lieu of Payments
Miscellaneous Purchased Services - Transportation

Total Undist. Expend. - Student Transportation Serv.

Exhibit C-1

(Concluded)
Variance
Original Budget Final Final to
Budget Transfers Budget Actual Actual
$ 2,155,025.00 $§ - $ 2,155,025.00 $ 2,070,346.00 $ (84,679.00)
- 12.66 12.66
- - - 1,274.06 1,274.06
2,155,025.00 - 2,155,025.00 2,071,632.72 (83,392.28)
244,682.00 - 244,682.00 255,521.00 10,839.00
90,954.00 - 90,854.00 87,070.00 (3,884.00)
11,935.00 - 11,935.00 9,213.00 (2,722.00)
- 11,044.00  11,044.00
- 54,958.00 54,958.00
- 62,144.00 62,144.00
- - - 81,495.31 81,495.31
347,571.00 - 347,571.00 561,445.31 213,874.31
2,502,596.00 - 2,5602,596.00 2,633,078.03 130,482.03
130-100-101 966,054.00 (5,565.40) 960,488.60 960,488.60 -
190-100-106 66,518.00 191.00 66,709.00 66,709.00 -
190-100-320 - 10,261.06 10,261.06 9,109.06 1,152.00
190-100-340 4,500.00 (1,465.50) 3,034.50 3,034.50 -
190-100-610 33,000.00 5,083.77 38,063.77 35,731.05 2,332.72
190-100-640 20,085.00 (3,084.91) 17,000.09 17,000.09 -
190-100-800 1,500.00 (949.85) 550.15 550.15 -
1,091,657.00 4,450.17 1,096,107.17 _ 1,092,622.45 3,484.72
1,091,657.00 445017 _ 1,096,107.17 _ 1,092622.45 3,484.72
000-218-104 60,334.00 2,036.32 62,370.32 62,370.32 -
000-218-105 47,166.00 48,180.87 95,346.87 95,346.87 -
000-218-320 80,450.00 (418.25) 80,031.75 79,683.25 348.50
187,950.00 49,798.94 237,748.94 237,400.44 348.50
000-230-100 249,683.00 (73,357.39) 176,325.61 176,325.61 -
000-230-339 58,885.00 16,412.26 75,297.26 75,297.26 -
000-230-340 4,300.00 1,060.00 5,360.00 5,360.00 -
000-230-530 8,500.00 (3,250.82) 5,249.18 5,088.25 160.93
000-230-590 - 3,765.00 3,765.00 3,765.00 -
000-230-600 6,000.00 3,001.30 9,001.30 9,001.30 -
000-230-890 17,900.00 (468.85) 17,431.15 17,431.15 -
345,268.00 (52,838.50) 292,429.50 292,268.57 160.93
000-262-441 337,334.00 (4,942.99) 332,391.01 332,391.01 -
000-262-490 71,066.00 7,658.05 78,724.05 71,905.06 6,818.99
000-262-520 20,809.00 (11,495.96) 9,313.04 9,313.04 -
000-262-610 7,000.00 6,572.88 13,572.88 12,755.52 817.36
000-262-620 41,301.00 (7,977.34) 33,323.66 28,613.24 4,710.42
$ 477,510.00 $ (10,185.36) $ 467,324.64 § 454,977.87 $ 12,346.77
000-270-519 10,000.00 80.00 10,080.00 7,818.31 2,261.69
000-270-593 - - - - -
10,000.00 80.00 10,080.00 7,818.31 2,261.69
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Exhibit C-1
BOARD OF EDUCATION
UNITY CHARTER SCHOOL
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
General Fund
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

(Concluded)
Variance
Original Budget Final Final to
Budget Transfers Budaget Actual Actual
UNALLOCATED BENEFITS
Group Insurance 000-291-210 $ 357,405.00 $ (88,053.29) $ 269,351.71 $ 26661342 § 2,738.29
Social Security Contributions 000-291-220 : 23,357.51 23,357.51 23,357.51 -
Other Retirement Contributions - Regular 000-291-241 57,020.01 57,020.01 57,020.01 -
Unemployment Compensation 000-291-250 9,227.34 9,227.34 9,227.34 -
Workmen's Compensation 000-291-260 10,489.24 10,489.24 10,489.24 -
Other Employee Benefits 000-291-290 - 9,432.06 9,432.06 8,939.50 492.56
TOTAL UNALLOCATED BENEFITS 357,405.00 21,472.87 378,877.87 375,647.02 3,230.85
On-behalf TPAF Pension Contributions (non-budgeted) - 54,958.00  (54,958.00)
On-behalf TPAF PRM Contributions (non-budgeted) 62,144.00  (62,144.00)
Reimbursed TPAF Social Security Contributions (non-budgeted) - - - 81,495.31 (81,495.31)
TOTAL ON-BEHALF CONTRIBUTIONS - - - 198,597.31  (198,597.31)
TOTAL PERSONAL SERVICES - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 357,405.00 21,472.87 378,877.87 574,244.33  (195,366.46)
TOTAL UNDISTRIBUTED EXPENDITURES 1,378,133.00 8,327.95 1,386,460.95 1,566,709.52 (180,248.57)
TOTAL GENERAL CURRENT EXPENSE 2,469,790.00 12,778.12 2,482,568.12 2,659,331.97 (176,763.85)
CAPITAL OUTLAY
Equipment
Undistributed Expenditures - Instruction 000-100-730 5,000.00 8,784.80 13,784.80 12,170.00 1,614.80
Undistributed Expenditures - General Admin. 000-230-730 6,000.00 (3,533.00) 2,467.00 2,467.00 -
Total Equipment 11,000.00 5,251.80 16,251.80 14,637.00 1,614.80
Facilities Acquisition and Construction Services
Construction Services 000-400-450 21,806.00 44 857.08 66,663.08 52,445.05 14,218.03
Total Facilities Acquisition and Construction Services 21,806.00 44 857.08 66,663.08 52,445.05 14,218.03
TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 32,806.00 50,108.88 82,914.88 67,082.05 15,832.83
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,502,596.00 62,887.00 2,565,483.00 2,726,414.02 (160,931.02)
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures - (62,887.00) (62,887.00) (93,335.99)  (30,448.99)
Fund Balance, July 1 334,642.37 - 334,642.37 334,642.37 -
Fund Balance, June 30 $ 334,642.37 $ (62,887.00) $ 27175537 $ 241,306.38 $(30,448.99)
Recapitulation of Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and
Other Financing Sources (Uses) Over (Under) Expenditures
and Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Adjustment for Prior Year Encumbrances $ - (4,887.00) $ (4,887.00) $  (4,887.00) $ -
Budgeted Fund Balance - (58,000.00) (58,000.00) (96,145.99)  (38,145.99)
Total $ - $ (62,887.00) $ (62,887.00) $ (101,032.99) $(38,145.99)
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BOARD OF EDUCATION
UNITY CHARTER SCHOOL

Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Special Revenue Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

REVENUES:

State Sources

Federal Sources

Local Sources
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Instruction
Personal Services - Salaries
Purchased Professional and Technical Services
General Supplies
Other Objects

Total Instruction
Support Services
Purchased Professional - Educational Services

Total Support Services

Total Expenditures

Total Outflows

Exhibit C-2

Original Budget Final Variance
Budget Transfers Budget Actual Final to Actual
- $ 157400 $ 1,574.00 $ 1,121.00 $ 453.00
- 32,756.00 32,756.00 32,756.00 -
- 2961474 29,614.74 9,982.12 19,632.62
- 63,044.74 63,944.74 43,859.12 20,085.62
15,520.56 15,520.56 2,575.00 12,945.56
1,389.00 1,389.00 1,389.00 -
11,605.43 11,605.43 4,465.37 7,140.06
- 673.75 673.75 673.75 -
- 29,188.74 29,188.74 9,103.12 20,085.62
34,756.00 34,756.00 34,756.00 -
- 34,756.00 34,756.00 34,756.00 -
- 63,944.74 63,944.74 43,859.12 20,085.62
- $63,944.74 $63,944.74 $43,859.12 $20,085.62
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BOARD OF EDUCATION
UNITY CHARTER SCHOOL
Required Supplementary Information
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Note to RSI
For the Fiscal Year Ended

Note A - Explanation of Differences between Budgetary Inflows and Outflows and
GAAP Revenues and Expenditures

General
Exhibit Fund

Sources/inflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "revenue"
from the budgetary comparison schedule [C-1,C-2] $2,633,078.03
Difference - budget to GAAP:
The last State aid payment is recognized as revenue for budgetary
purposes, and differs from GAAP which does not recognize this
revenue until the subsequent year when the State recognizes
the related expense in accordance with GASB 33. -

Grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that
encumbrances are recognized as expenditures, and the related

Exhibit C-3

Special
Revenue
Fund

$ 43,859.12

revenue is recognized.

Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues, expenditures

$ 43,859.12

and changes in fund balances - governmental funds. [B-2] $2,633,078.03

Uses/outflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total outflows" from the
budgetary comparison schedule [C-1,C-2] $2,726,414.02
Differences - budget to GAAP
Encumbrances for supplies and equipment ordered but
not received are reported in the year the order is placed for
budgetary purposes, but in the year the supplies are received
for financial reporting purposes.
Transfers to and from other funds are presented as outflows of
budgetary resources but are not expenditures $ -
for financial reporting purposes. -
Net transfers (outflows) to general fund -

$ 43,859.12

Total expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances - governmental funds [B-2] $2,726,414.02

$ 43,859.12
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Section D

SCHOOL LEVEL SCHEDULES
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
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BOARD OF EDUCATION
UNITY CHARTER SCHOOL
Special Revenue Fund
Combining Schedule of Program Revenues and Expenditures - Budgetary Basis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

REVENUES
State Sources
Federal Sources
Local Sources
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Instruction:
Personal Services - Salaries
Purchased Professional and Technical Services
General Supplies
Other Objects

Total Instruction
Support Services:
Purchased Professional - Educational Services

Total Support Services

Total Expenditures

100-100
100-300
100-610
100-800

200-320
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Exhibit E-1

State Federal Local
Total Aid Aid Aid

$ 1,121.00 $1,121.00 $ - $ -

32,756.00 - 32,756.00 -
9,982.12 - - 9,982.12
43,859.12 1,121.00 32,756.00 9,982.12
2,575.00 - - 2,575.00
1,389.00 1,121.00 - 268.00
4,465.37 - - 4.465.37
673.75 - - 673.75
9,103.12 1,121.00 - 7,982.12
34,756.00 - 32,756.00 2,000.00
34,756.00 - 32,756.00 2,000.00
$43,859.12 $1,121.00 $32,756.00 $ 9,982.12




BOARD OF EDUCATION
UNITY CHARTER SCHOOL
Special Revenue Fund

Exhibit E-1a

Combining Schedule of State Program Revenues and Expenditures - Budgetary Basis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

REVENUES
State Sources

Total State Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Instruction:
Purchased Professional and Technical Services

Total Instruction

Total Expenditures

62

Anti-Bullying
Total Grant
$1,121.00 $1,121.00
1,121.00 1,121.00
100-300 _ 1,121.00 1,121.00
1,121.00 1,121.00
$1,121.00 $1,121.00




BOARD OF EDUCATION
UNITY CHARTER SCHOOL
Special Revenue Fund

Exhibit E-1b

Combining Schedule of Federal Program Revenues and Expenditures - Budgetary Basis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

REVENUES
Federal Sources

Total Federal Revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Support Services:
Purchased Professional - Educational Services
Supplies and Materials

Total Support Services

Total Expenditures

63

I.D.E.A. Part
B
Total Basic
$32,756.00 $32,756.00
32,756.00 32,756.00
200-320 32,756.00 32,756.00
200-600 - -
32,756.00 32,756.00
$32,756.00 $32,756.00
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS
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ENTERPRISE FUND
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
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FIDUCIARY FUND
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Exhibit H-3
BOARD OF EDUCATION
UNITY CHARTER SCHOOL
Student Activity Agency Fund
Schedule of Receipts and Disbursements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Balance Cash Cash Balance
Account June 30, 2012 Receipts Disbursements June 30,2013
Student Activity $ 3,136.25 $48,866.79 $50,361.06 $ 1,641.98
Fund Raising 4. 877.86 4,782.54 7,031.70 2,628.70
Interfund Accounts Payable - 3,437.90 - 3,437.90

$ 8,014.11 $57,087.23 $57,392.76 $ 7,708.58
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BOARD OF EDUCATION
UNITY CHARTER SCHOOL
Payroll Agency Fund
Schedule of Receipts and Disbursements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Exhibit H-4

Balance Cash Cash Balance
June 30, 2012 Receipts Disbursements June 30, 2013
Payroll Deductions and Withholdings  $ 1,072.81 $ 582,806.27 $ 583,626.02 $ 253.06
Net Salaries and Wages 963.89 943,484.45 - 943,484 .45 963.89
Flexible Spending Account 10.00 10.00
Interfund Accounts Payable - 16,884.45 - 16,884.45
$ 2,036.70 $1,543,185.17 $ 1,527,110.47 $18,111.40
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Section I

LONG — TERM DEBT
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STATISTICAL SECTION (Unaudited)

Financial Trends

J-1 Net Assets/Position by Component

J-2 Changes in Net Assets/Position

J-3 Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

J-4 Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds
J-5 General Fund - Other Local Revenue by Source

Revenue Capacity

J-6 Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property
J-7 Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates
J-8 Principal Property Taxpayers
J-9 Property Tax Levies and Collections
Debt Capacity
J-10 Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type
J-11 Ratios of Net General Bonded Debt Outstanding
J-12 Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt as of June 30
J-13 Legal Debt Margin Information
Demographic and Economic Information
J-14 Demographic and Economic Statistics
J-15 Principal Employers
Operating Information
J-16 Full-time Equivalent District Employees by Function/Program
J-17 Operating Statistics
J-18 School Building Information
J-19 Schedule of Required Maintenance for School Facilities
J-20 insurance Schedule

Charter School Performance Framework Financial Indicators
J-21 Near Term Indicators
J-22 Sustainability Indicators

Certain Exhibits do not contain ten years of information since GASBS No. 44 was implemented as
of the fiscal year ending June 30, 2004.
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Exhibit J-13

BOARD OF EDUCATION
UNITY CHARTER SCHOOL

Legal Debt Margin Information
Last Ten Fiscal Years
Unaudited

NOT APPLICABLE
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Exhibit J-20

BOARD OF EDUCATION
’ UNITY CHARTER SCHOOL

Insurance Schedule
As of June 30, 2013
Unaudited

COVERAGE DEDUCTIBLE

School Package Policy - N.J. School Boards
Association Insurance Group

Property - Blanket Building & Contents $ 11,350,337,221.00 $ 1,000.00
Comprehensive General Liability 16,000,000.00
Comprehensive Automotive Liability 16,000,000.00
Comprehensive 1,000.00
Collision 1,000.00
Computer & Scheduled Equipment 37,000.00 1,000.00
Boiler & Machinery 100,000,000.00 1,000.00
School Boards Legal Liability - N.J. School Boards - 16,000,000.00 5,000.00
Workers Compensation - N.J. School Boards Assoc. 5,000,000.00
Employers Liability Insurance
Bodily Injury by Accident 2,000,000.00 each accident
Bodily Injury by Disease 2,000,000.00 each employee
Bodily Injury by Disease ' 2,000,000.00 policy limit
Flood Insurance - N.J. School Boards
Buildings 50,000,000.00 500,000.00
Contents 1,000,000.00 500,000.00
Faithful Performance Bond 50,000.00 500.00

Source: District Records

94



(sjuswihed jsasaiu| g jedpulig)/{asuadxg VIN V/IN V/IN ofjey abesanod 8diAleS 1q8Q ‘pe
1sassju|+uoneoaideq+sjessy JaN ul abueyn)

s1eak ioid Wwodj moy seo Uj sbueyd JoN | (6€ £Gv 99) v 0Lz2ie) | 90 1el 102 62 989 7v moljyses] ., 0z
51058V (€10 1/SaNIGerT [B10L Z€0 Z20 0E0 1655y 011384 G2
BNUBASY [B10] /S}ossy JaN ul om:mco %€ %< %L %E uibsep jejof. ‘eg
i T ; , : RR f : (BI0JEBIPUL I ARUIRISNS |
ipny oN oN inejea «Pl
\uawijoiuz pajebpng/juswijoiu] Ajleq abelaay %€01 %101 aduBlEA Juswjolul ED
(goe/5esUadxg [el0 )/UseD 299 AL Used sKeq pajomysaiun qr
saljlliqery Jusliny/sjassy Waiin) 08°0 ‘Bl
FliL EON;

jobpng {004ds Jajieyd 1L} 6.1 10} Justujfoluz pajabpng yl0¢ Yolepw

spoday uswijoiug 304 €8l 08l €0} JusW[joJuT Ajleq eBessAy [euid

mhwalmav_..o>> Ipny/sjuswialels jeloueuly 0 0 0 wucw:;mn_ Isalay|

w._mn_mav_._o>> Jipny/sjusuuialels jeiouedly 0 0 0 w«:m:;mn_ nmn_oc_..&

m'_wnmav_‘_og jipny/sjuswajels jeoueuly 0 0 0 mm:maxw }salaju|

SiadeA)NJOAA JIPNY/SjuaLalels jeoueuld | 68°/02'6 2.°6€0'0L ZLell'L asuadx3 uogejoaldaqg

Z-v WalXg PNy vol1'99) | 19767 761 15°10V'89 OISO 18N Ul 8Buey)

Z-V HaIuX3 Py Ve L1z L1L'C | 99€281hYe GV'6E0'1G6 1 SosUadXg 0L

Z-v NaIUX3 Py 06001 112C | 12 12€9€9°2 Z0L¥r'610C SNUBAGY [B101

1~V NAIGXT Py 62 99L29¢ | ¢/ cvB8ey TLSvrvee UOISOd 19N

A E R IG Y28l | OV S8vLiL YZ ¥16'00} SoIIqerT [E1oL

A E R IGvzv'e9l | oveaviil Y2 ¥16'001
L-V HQiuxs Hpny 98°061°1€S Z\'82¥'9¥S GE'6LY GEE
A EE R VG 110'0/€ | 21 L6766 6£°095'50F §1855Y JUelIND
1~ NqI0X3 PNy 6641616 | £1881 v9E 10°750'€91 4seo

sopey [easid
aoueuLIOpad [eloueul
ylomalwel asueWIOad |00U9S 1a)1ey)

TTOOHOS HALYVHI ALINN
NOLLYONA3d 40 quvod

TT-r pue Lz-r Nqiyxzg

95



REPORT ON COMPLIANCE

96



Vincent M. Montanino, RMA, PSA
Michael S. Zambito, CPA, RMA

Antonia Russo, Associate

111 Howard Boulevard
Suite 212

P.O. Box 397

Mit. Arlington, NJ 07856
Phone: 973-770-5491
Fax: 973-770-5494

vm_associates@msn.com

VM ASSOCIATES, INC.

K-1
Sheet 1

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNATL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED
ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH “GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS”

: The Honorable President
8 Members of the Board of Education

Unity Charter School

i County of Morris, New Jersey

7 We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
| States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government

Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and in compliance
with audit requirements prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of Education,
State of New Jersey, the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund,

j| and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Unity Charter School as of and for the year
I ended June 30, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
| comprise. the Charter School’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents and
f| have issued our report thereon dated November 21, 2013.

7 Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

| In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Unity

Charter School’s internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion
on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness

| of the Unity Charter School’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not
| express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Unity Charter School’s internal control over
|| financial reporting.

} A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
8l management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to

prevent or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a

| deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
|| possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented,
Bl or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
| combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
| important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as
defined above. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Unity Charter School’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards
and audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of Education, State of New
Jersey.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
and the Division of Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey in considering the entity’s internal
control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Vincent M. Montanino
Registered Municipal Accountant
License No. CS000495

7 ,, —_—

Michael S. Zambito ,
Certified Public _/cc'ountant
License No. 20CC00789500

November 21, 2013
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Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

K-5
Sheet 1

BOARD OF EDUCATION
UNITY CHARTER SCHOOL

NOTES TO SCHEDULES OF EXPENDITURES OF AWARDS AND FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

General

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of awards and financial assistance present the activity of all
federal and state programs of the Unity Charter School Board of Education. The Board of Education is
defined in Note I:B. to the Board’s basic financial statements. All federal awards and state financial
assistance received directly from federal and state agencies, as well as federal awards and state financial
assistance passed through other government agencies is included on the schedule of expenditures of
federal awards and state financial assistance.

Basis of Accounting

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of awards and financial assistance are presented using the
budgetary basis of accounting with the exception of programs recorded in the food service fund, which are
presented using the accrual basis of accounting. These basis of accounting are described in Notes I:E and
Note LF. to the Board’s basic financial statements. The information in the schedules is presented in
accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-
Profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in the schedules may differ from amounts
presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements.

Relationship to Basic Financial Statements

The basic financial statements present the general fund and special revenue fund on a GAAP basis.
Budgetary comparison statements or schedules (RSI) are presented for the general fund and special
revenue fund to demonstrate finance-related legal compliance in which certain revenue is permitted by
law or grant agreement to be recognized in the audit year, whereas for GAAP reporting, revenue is not
recognized until the subsequent year or when expenditures have been made.

The general fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the modified accrual basis with the
exception of the revenue recognition of the one or more deferred June state aid payments in the current
budget year, which is mandated pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:22-44.2. For GAAP purposes payments are not
recognized until the subsequent year due to the state deferral and recording of one or more June state aid
payments in the subsequent year. The special revenue fund is presented in the accompanying schedules
on the grant accounting budgetary basis which recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also
recognizes the related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis does not. The special revenue fund also
recognizes the one or more June state aid payment in the current budget year, consistent with N.J.S.A.
18A:22-44.2.
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Note 3:

Note 4:

Note 5:

Note 6:

K-5
Sheet 2

BOARD OF EDUCATION
UNITY CHARTER SCHOOL

NOTES TO SCHEDULES OF EXPENDITURES OF AWARDS AND FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013
CONCLUDED

Relationship to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

The net adjustment to reconcile from the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis is $0.00 in the general fund
and $0.00 in the special revenue fund. See the Notes to Required Supplementary Information for a
reconciliation of the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis of accounting for the general and special revenue
funds. Awards and financial assistance revenues are reported in the Board’s basic financial statements on
a GAAP basis as follows:

Federal State Total
General Fund $ $561,445.31 $561,445.31
Special Revenue Fund 32.756.00 1.121.00 33.877.00
Total Awards and Financial
Assistance $32.756.00 $562.566.31 $595,322.31

Relationship to Federal and State Financial Reports

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with the amounts reported in the related federal
and state financial reports.

Other

The amounts reported as TPAF Pension and Post Retirement Medical Contributions represents the
amounts paid by the state on behalf of the district for the year ended June 30, 2013. TPAF Social Security
Contributions represents the amount reimbursed by the state for the employer’s share of social security
contributions for TPAF members for the year ended June 30, 2013.

On-Behalf Programs Not Subject to State Single Audit

On-behalf State Programs for TPAF Pension and Post-Retirement Medical Benefits Contributions payments
are not subject to a State single audit and, therefore, are excluded from major program determination. The
Schedule of State Financial Assistance provides a reconciliation of State financial assistance reported in the
District’s basic financial statements and the amount subject to State single audit and major program
determination.
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BOARD OF EDUCATION
UNITY CHARTER SCHOOL

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Part I — Summary of Auditor’s Results
Financial Statement Section

A) Type of auditor’s report issued: Unqualified
B) Internal Control over financial reporting:

1) Material weakness(es) identified? yes X _no

2) Were significant deficiencies identified
that were not considered to be material
weaknesses? yes X no

C) Noncompliance material to basic
financial statements noted? yes X no

Federal Awards Section

Not Applicable

State Financial Assistance Section

Not Applicable
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BOARD OF EDUCATION
UNITY CHARTER SCHOOL

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

(CONTINUED)

Part 2 — Schedule of Financial Statement Findings

This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses and instances of noncompliance related to
the basic financial statements that are required to be reported in accordance with Chapter 5.18 of Government
Auditing Standards.

Not Applicable
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BOARD OF EDUCATION
UNITY CHARTER SCHOOL

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

CONTINUED

Part 3 — Schedule of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance Findings and Questioned Costs
This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses and instances of noncompliance, including
questioned costs, related to the audit of major federal and state programs, as required by OMB Circular A-133 and
New Jersey OMB’s Circular 04-04.

Not Applicable
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BOARD OF EDUCATION
UNITY CHARTER SCHOOL

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR-YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS
AND QUESTIONED COSTS AS PREPARED BY MANAGEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2013

This section identifies the status of prior-year findings related to the basic financial statements and federal and state
awards that are required to be reported in accordance with Chapter 6.12 of Government Auditing Standards, U.S.
OMB Circular A-133 (section .315 (a) (b)) and New Jersey OMB’s Circular 04-04.

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS

Not Applicable
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